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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(gavel). . . Loud, yeah? . . .(laughter). . . Aloha and good
evening, Hana. Thank you for being here with us. You know, I know all the important
people are here tonight, so. . ..(laughter). . . We're going to start our Planning
Committee meeting in, in a few minutes, moments, but I'm going to call on
Councilmember Medeiros to do the introductions of our Committee Members. Bill.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair Kaho'ohalahala, and we'll start off with the
introductions of certainly the Chair of the Committee, representing the island of Lanai,
our Committee Chair Sol Kaho'ohalahala. And then we'll introduce our illustrious
woman that always comes to Hana, drives in. And she's, of course, represents the up,
Upcountry, Pukalani, Kula, and that area, Ulupalakua, and she is our Member of the
Committee, Ms. Gladys Baisa. And then let me introduce the Council Chair that's a
Member of this Committee and he represents the. . .I'm sorry, non, Non-Member. I'm
sorry.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .(laughter). . .
Okay, I'm, I'm sorry. I'm sure after that...we, we, we do have, you know, non,
Non-Members that can attend the meetings and participate in the discussions. And so, let
me introduce the, the Members first. And let me stay on this table.
And we have representing Wailuku, Waihee, Waiehu, we have Member Michael
Victorino. And then we move to this side, this the Non-Member side. We have two
Non-Members of the Committee here this evening that have joined us, and we appreciate
them coming all the way to Hana to be a part of this. First, we have our Council Chair,
representing the island of Molokai, Mr. Danny Mateo. And also a Non-Voting Member
from the Kahului District and Central Maui, we have our Budget Chair that will be taking
up business shortly, he is our Joseph Pontanilla. And I'm going to let the Chair introduce
the Staff. Mahalo.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Member Medeiros, for the introductions. Also, to
let you know, excused tonight from our Committee meeting is Member Nishiki and also
Member Johnson who'd make up the. . .oh, and I'm sorry and Member Molina. So,
Member Johnson is Vice-Chair of this Committee and Member Molina is a Member of
the Committee and Member Nishiki is a Member of the Committee as well. Okay.
Before we go on further, I'd like to introduce also our Staff that are with us tonight. To
my back is our Legislative Analyst and this is Attorney and Analyst David Raatz. David,
thank you for being here. And then I'm going to jump across to the farthest table from
me and to my right is also a Legislative Analyst and Attorney and this is Kirstin
Hamman. Kirstin, aloha. And next to Kirstin is Scott Kaneshina, who's a Legislative
Analyst, who just started with the Council Services, so this is his first meeting out in
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Hana. And so, we're happy to have him here tonight. And then our powerhouse, which
is our Committee Secretary is next to Scott and is Clarita Balala. Clarita, thank you.
And then moving forward in front of Clarita would be the Department of Planning, and
this is Simone Bosco. And then also from the Corporation Counsel, we have with us
tonight and this is Michael Hopper, who is a Deputy Corporation Counsel. Okay.
So before we begin, just a couple of, of the formalities. If you have any phones with
sound or sound devices, if you would kindly turn them off so that we can conduct our
meeting without that kind of interruption. I'd appreciate that. We will be accepting
public testimony, so if you would like to testify for tonight's hearing, please sign up if
you haven't done so, and if you're wishing to come forward and, and sign up with our
Staff here. We will, at this point, have unlimited testimony times, and I'm sure that with
the number of people here, we, we'll have enough time to allow you to say what you
would like to say. So, I'm not going to put any limits on the testimony for tonight. And
then you are requested if you testify to come to the mic up here and then state your name
and who you represent for the record. I appreciate that. Okay.

ITEM NO. 2: GENERAL PLAN UPDATE (C.C. No. 07-54)
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Let me briefly give you an idea of where this Committee and
this particular item has, has gone so far. The Chair decided that we should take an
opportunity to come to Hana to allow you an, an opportunity to, to let us know what you
think about the. . .our General Plan for Maui County, and we would like to also continue
by going to Molokai and Lanai as well. And the rest of our meetings, for the most part,
have been held in Central Maui and in Wailuku, so.
This is PC-2 and this is the General Plan Update item. So, let me give you an idea of
where we started and where we are at, at this time. The General Plan describes the
desires of the future of Maui County as established in Chapter 2.80B, the Maui County
Code. The first part of the County's decennial General Plan Update is the Countywide
Policy Plan. The draft Countywide Policy Plan was presented to the Council last year by
the Department of Planning following a lengthy review process by the General Plan
Advisory Committee, which is been known as GPAC, the Planning Commissions, and
the Cultural Resources Commissions. The Council is now left with the responsibility to
evaluate the comments and recommendations of the advisory bodies and enact the
Countywide Policy Plan by ordinance. Okay.
The Maui County Code establishes three mandatory components of the Countywide
Policy Plan: one is a vision for the County; two, a statement of core themes or principles
for the County; and three, a list of Countywide objectives and policies for population,
land use, the environment, the economy, and housing. The Committee has been
deliberating on the...in the Council Chambers on the Countywide Policy Plan since June,
and we expect that the legislative review process will continue at least until November.
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Because of the importance of the document for the future of the entire County, the
Committee believes that it is important to travel to Hana, Lanai, and Molokai to ensure
that testimony is heard from all County residents who are interested in contributing.
The bill adopting the Plan is available from Clarita, our, our Committee Secretary, for
anyone in the public who does not yet have a copy. Testimony will be accepted on, on
this Countywide Policy Plan and the plan tonight is to take public testimony first and then
as time permits, we will continue with the Committee's deliberation on this planning
process. So, given that, then the Chair would like to, without any objections from the
Committee Members, open the floor now for public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And so, we have signed for public testimony tonight,
Mr. John Bryant. So, at this time, Mr. Bryant, if you'd like to come up and state your
name and who you represent for the record, and then we will allow you time to, to testify.
So, Mr. Bryant.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MR. BRYANT: Hello everybody and thank you for having me here. If I would have known I
would be in the presence of dignitaries I would have brought some lilikoi and some
avocados and some fruit from my land and pass it around and shared it. I'm a new owner
here to the, to the Maui area, and two years now, and I have a couple of acres that I try to
grow and, and, and keep pretty natural the way it is. I'm trying to live in harmony with
this property that I bought and it has lychee, it has avocados, it has bananas, it has
thimbleberries, it has. . .it, it has so much fruit that I'm not even aware existed but I don't
want to destroy it in the process. I want to try and, and find out what is there.
And I don't have any objections to anything that I've read in here. This looks really good
on paper and it sounds great and I haven't even read the whole thing yet. But one of the
things that concerns me is that and, and, and I don't know if this is the appropriate forum
but there's. . .it has to do with taxes. And like I said, this may not be the appropriate
forum, but I'm given a tax break if I take a bulldozer and push everything over and just
make it into mulch and draw a, a fence line and put a couple of cows on it. And I have a
backhoe sitting on my property right now and I'm still learning everything that exists on
my property. I'm aware of my guavas. I'm aware of my Jamaican lilikois, my regular
lilikois, and the list goes on. I have a list. I've discovered three new produce that I didn't
even know existed today. And so, it just seems like it isn't appropriate that, that you
should be rewarded for just having a cow and some pigs on your land and then, get a, get
a break. And I'm, I'm, I'm all for paying my fair share but I just. . .I'm new to this and
I'm not trying to irritate anybody or anything and I'm trying to learn. And I try to live,
like I said, with the land.
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Today I went out. . .1 cleared a place in the last couple of days with a weed eater that was
probably half as big as this room. And in doing so, I took out a bunch of purple flowers.
I don't even know the name of them yet and I discovered underneath that area that there
was lots of bugs that were living under there. There was ants. There was earthworms.
There was the lilikoi vines because it was moist under there and they could take the water
from that and, you know, and now I'm planting a bunch of, I have a whole bunch of
germinated pineapples that I'm going to plant there. But I don't' know if I did the right
thing because I have to have evidence of growing, you know, and I have big avocado
trees, many of them. I don't even know how many yet. I've counted up to. . .I lost count
actually. And bananas, and papayas, and strawberry papayas, and, and the list goes on.
And anyway, it's just. . .I would hate to put a chainsaw to an avocado tree just to be able
to have a cow there to get a tax break, you know, that's my point. And thank you all for
hearing me and I appreciate it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Bryant. Members, are there any
questions for the testifier? Mr. Bryant -MR. BRYANT: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --would you come back to the mic? We have some questions,
yeah.
MR. BRYANT: Like I said, I'm kind of new to all of this, so.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's okay, don't feel bad. We're all learning every day.
MR. BRYANT: I'm kind of nervous.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And we're glad you came. Relax. We're just regular folks.
MR. BRYANT: Oh, I know, you know, everybody I've met here, I'm just, everybody's
wonderful. I mean, I just, everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I always tell testifiers don't get excited. We're just, you
know, citizens like you with a job -MR. BRYANT: I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --trying to do it. And we really appreciate the public coming to,
to share their manao with us. I wanted to ask you, how large is your acreage?
MR. BRYANT: Two acres.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two acres?
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MR. BRYANT: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And essentially do you have a house on it?
MR. BRYANT: No, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see, so it's just acreage at this time?
MR. BRYANT: It is and, and I'm, and I'm, I'm doing the best I can.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you intend to sell any of the products that are on it?
MR. BRYANT: I have a caretaker that has a. . .he has a bus that he's using right now. And he's
been keeping all the weeds at bay and he's been utilizing the, the fruits and vegetables.
He sells to the stand up the road and then that pays for the gas and the oil and stuff to
keep the, the roads clear to be able to access the property and so forth.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Have you talked to anybody in the Planning Department about
the requirements for having a farm?
MR. BRYANT: I have, I have it with me actually.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see.
MR. BRYANT: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And you're under the impression that you have to plow it, plow
it to get some. . .to be okay with farming?
MR. BRYANT: Can I just grab one paper real quick?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sure.
MR. BRYANT: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If the Chair doesn't mind?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think it's important.
MR. BRYANT: And I feel that I've been dealt with very fairly up to this point but I'm
somewhat confused to it all.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let me, let me tell you -MR. BRYANT: And that's why I mentioned it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --the whole, the whole farming thing is very confusing.
MR. BRYANT: Yeah. It's a, it's a little complexing [sic]. Yes, it can be but I'm, I'm doing my
best. And like I said, this may not be the forum, you know, and it's just. . .there was a lot
of letters and talking with other people. A lot of people got letters, this here concerning
their proof of, you know, now it says. . .it's talking about agricultural land and it's
actually put into agricultural use, show deemed to be when crops are actually in
cultivation and farm management efforts such as weeding or pruning, which I've been
doing for the last week incessantly, and then it says plowing, including housing, fencing,
and water facilities for livestock and pasturing of animals are clearly present. And they,
they highlighted in dark letters clearly evident -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Did, did you...
MR. BRYANT: --when, when it comes to pasteurizing and animals.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Did you come across anything in there that talks about a amount
of income that you need to derive from the property?
MR. BRYANT: No, ma'am, I did not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. Well, you might want to pursue this further with the
Planning Department -MR. BRYANT: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --to try to understand it better. It's very complicated.
MR. BRYANT: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, don't feel bad. This is a tough one.
MR. BRYANT: Okay, okay. Well, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And thank you for coming to share this with us.
MR. BRYANT: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
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MR. BRYANT: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Bryant?
MR. BRYANT: Oh, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You, you can't get away that easily.
MR. BRYANT: All right. You got me, I'm here.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Well, thank you for testifying and being here this
evening. Where is your property at? What area?
MR. BRYANT: It's over down by the airport.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, Kaeleku?
MR. BRYANT: It's, it's on the shoreline side of. . .it's in the SMA area.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And are you zoned Ag, Agriculture?
MR. BRYANT: Yes, sir, I am.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I see that your address, you, you, you use your
address in California.
MR. BRYANT: I do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, how, how often are you here?
MR. BRYANT: I come over as often as I can. You know, not to be evasive. It just depends,
you know, because to work the land as, as much as, and I'm sure anybody, anybody
that's in that arena knows that you can't just work the land all the time and make a living
from it. You have to work and then be able to put your money into your land. So, you
know, it, it's. . .most of us, and even my neighbors, you know, they all have jobs besides,
you know, and you have to pay for the land and you do the best you can.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I had a meeting on Saturday with some of the
constituents, some of the residents of Hana.
MR. BRYANT: Yes, sir.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And I also got a request from a long-time resident of Hana
about filling out those documents.
MR. BRYANT: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the request was to see if the Department of Finance
would consider an extension of time instead of the, I believe, you guys have what,
30 days -MR. BRYANT: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --to do it.
MR. BRYANT: From...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, I, I put in a call to the Department of Finance today.
MR. BRYANT: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so, I'm waiting for a response and also the request by
the same citizen from Hana, a long-time resident, was to see if they would be able to
come to Hana and have a workshop on filling out those documents.
MR. BRYANT: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Because it can be pretty complicated and, and, and, you
know, burdensome. But I just wanted to pass on that information to you.
MR. BRYANT: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But thank you for being here this evening.
MR. BRYANT: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Bryant, then there are no more questions,
yeah.
MR. BRYANT: Okay, thank you, folks.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I appreciate that. Okay, if I may, I'd like to call up Robin
Rayner. Yeah. If you would come forward to the mic and then for the record introduce
yourself and who you represent.
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MS. RAYNER: My name is Robin Rayner and I'm representing myself but I, I'm just
registered. I, I'm here to find out what I. . .frankly, well, in all honesty, I just, just got
notice of this meeting. I didn't know anything at all about it and I wanted to find out
what, what your agenda is, and I just looked at your agenda, and frankly, I don't
understand what your agenda is. So, I, you know, very little notice and not a clear
agenda. I'm a citizen here in Hana and I'm concerned. I'm also an architect here and I'd
like to pay attention to what's going on. I'm particularly interested in the Master Plan,
and frankly, I'm just a little confused that there is so little information about such a
meeting as this one.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you, Ms. Rayner, Rayner. For your information,
right there at our Secretary, we have documents of our, our General Plan, our General
Policy Plan. So, if you would like to get a copy.
MS. RAYNER: I just picked up a copy of those, thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then in terms of notices, we're required by law to
post these notices one week prior to the actual meeting. So, this has been officially
posted. And then if you would like...
MS. RAYNER: Could you show me where it's posted?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, one is in the newspapers. We also have the County
website of which these notices are also placed, and if you are interested, you can actually
contact the County and you can have yourself listed so that notices for meetings can be
actually sent directly to you if you -MS. RAYNER: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --request so. So, I'm sorry that you got late notice but this has
been properly noticed, yeah.
MS. RAYNER: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: In terms of the General Plan, do you have any thoughts or
anything that you would like to.. .
MS. RAYNER: Not at this time. I'd like just to review what you have as documents -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. RAYNER: --that you're handing out.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And if you like you can still submit your comments to this
Committee for this item, and you have a copy of the agenda for tonight and that's what
you can make reference to.
MS. RAYNER: Okay. So, if I review the documents, I have comments I can, I can. . .is there -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
MS. RAYNER: --there's a way for me to, to comment in, in writing?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes, just send it to the, the Council Services and to this,
attention to this Committee -MS. RAYNER: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --the Planning Committee and to the item number, which is our
PC-2, okay.
MS. RAYNER: Very good, thank you very much.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, you have any questions? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Ms. Rayner, thank you for being, being here. Just to give
you more information. In Hana, we have a Hana District Council office, up at the, what
is called the Community Center, the old school by the. . .and our representative back
there, Ms. Dawn Lono, works there.
MS. RAYNER: Yes, I.. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And she usually puts up notices around town at the

different bulletin boards. But if you have any questions, I will then, as the Chair said, on
the website, calling our, our Wailuku number. You can also inquire with our District
office. Okay?
MS. RAYNER: Yep, good, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you very much. The next person that's signed up
is Mark Collins.
MR. COLLINS: Good evening, I'm Mark Collins. I'm talking about. . .here to talk about the,
the fishing in Hana. I've. . .I'm a co-founder of the Hana Offshore Fishermen's
Association. We formed about three years ago to work with Western Regional Fisheries

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 14, 2009
Helene Hall, Hana

to create a model for rural communities in Hawaii for fishing to help with the
management and the, the resource to both fishermen and, and the resource, protecting that
resource. And for the last three years, we've been. . .it's been going very well. We. . .the
fish, the fishing in Hana has increased as, as have the number of fishermen by two-fold. I
believe we got about 20 members now and the fish available, because we've worked with
the FAD system, which is the fish aggregating devices and that which attracts the fish,
sort of a green wave of fish, and it also makes it very practical for fishermen to work with
marine biologists and managers to, you know, create a better, a better way to manage our
fisheries, our resource.
We, we've come, in three years, we've completed the first phase of this. It has been very
successful. The amount of people that are fishing have almost doubled. The fish
available to the community is definitely increased each year. I don't have any numbers
for you but people out here in Hana can attest to that. There's plenty of fish for, you
know, graduation parties and what not, more than there used to be.
The next phase of this is to, is to get infrastructure, something we wanted to try to do for
several years and, you know, as the economy goes, you know, going back to the
importance of fishing and, and farming, like an ice house and what not. And so, where,
where we are now, we're trying to find areas that are, you know, that we're able to
develop the infrastructure necessary for us to compete, you know, with the larger fleets.
And that's, that's what I have to say.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Collins. Members, are there any
questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good evening, Mr. Collins.
MR. COLLINS: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I did get some information and I don't know if it's
appropriate to mention but the SPR, so after the meeting I can meet with you and pass on
that information for you.
MR. COLLINS: Oh, great.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you.
MR. COLLINS: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you.
MR. COLLINS: Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is there anyone else here that would like to, to testify and you
haven't had a chance to sign, please feel free to come to the mic if you'd like to. Okay.
MR. THORNE: Hi, my name is Chuck Thorne. Is this thing working?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm sorry, I just got this.
MR. THORNE: Oh, you just got it, okay, great. A couple of things I'd like to talk about with
you guys. I did get the letter, too, to raise my taxes on agricultural property if you're not
farming a lot is the way I get it. And I called Wes Yoshioka who's in charge of the
Taxation Department right away and questioned him about that. And he said, yeah, we
want to see rows of crops in your property covering a substantial portion of your grounds.
And I don't know what substantial means. I think that's pretty subjective. They also
gave us 30 days to comply when the rules on the back says send us a photo that's taken
30 days prior to submitting your application. Well, unless I go back in time and take that
photo, I can't get one 30 days prior and get it in to them within the 30 days. No matter
what you do, you're going to be two days late. So, that's a little silly.

I also would like to say that farming in Maui is a little bit different. We have a bunch of
solid rock on our property. I've got three acres there and you can't grow too much. I
interviewed farmers on the mainland and they have huge tracks of land, thousands of
acres and they have combines and tillers. And I asked them, what's your average yield
per acre? And they say, you know, a good year, two, three, four hundred dollars per acre,
per year is what they expect to make as being a commercial farmer. So, here in Hana for
the three acres and we make 300 a year, per acre, that would only be $900 per year we
could expect by farming our land. So, for farming in Maui, for most of us, it's kind of a
sidelight [sic] to our normal job. And we have to work our normal job because otherwise
we couldn't make it on $900 per year. So, forcing us to farm our entire land seems to be
a bit much.
Now, I know you guys. . .1 read this entire plan. This seems to be the Maui Community
Plan that they. . .I got from the Chamber of Commerce. It's about 171 pages and I read it
twice and highlighted a lot of things. There seems to be a pushing that we deter tourism
and try to encourage farming. So, that seems to be the strongest point in this Maui
Community Plan is to encourage farming so we have a. . .yeah, I understand the
reasoning so we're not all reliant on tourism if things go bad. But if we all farm our
lands, if we all start plowing up our lands right now, and farming just for the sake of
farming, and most of us not necessarily really knowing what we're doing, we kind of
open up the land to a lot of erosion. You start tilling your soil, and then one big rain
comes and it washes your soil down into the neighbor's. Another rain, it's down in the
ocean. So, this doesn't work very well. We need to preserve a lot of our soil.
Well, you know, I know you have a plan for us, the plan you made here. But, you know,
I want to live 40 more years on my property and I have my own plan for my property and
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I'm, I'm farming a part of it. But other parts, I'm doing testings. I'm testing one kind of
fruit tree here, one kind of fruit tree there, and see what grows, and see what works. But
if they're coming to me and say, well, you're only really farming 20 percent and the other
is not really farming because according to this letter your sporadic fruit trees and your
vegetable garden don't count and subsistence is no good anymore. That doesn't qualify
for your tax break.
Well, if I bring out all my soil now and plow it all up and it washes in the ocean, 30 years
from now when I really need to farm and grow some crops I don't have any soil left, you
know. Topsoil depletion is basically the major cause of the, the demise of most
civilizations on this planet if you look back in history. People who didn't know how to
properly take care of their soil and over-farming and overgrazing and blah, blah. So, this,
this tax incentive to raise our taxes ten-fold seems insane to try to, to get us to just trash
our soil right now when we might really need it in the future and, and I don't understand
that. I mean it seems like a bad idea.
I know the premise to get more farming here, it may be good, but I still think the laws of
supply and demand will work even better. The natural laws we have in place in the
universe that say if there's a shortage on tomatoes, people will grow more tomatoes and
they will just naturally, they'll just do that. I don't think we need legislation to force us
to farm. And if everybody grows tomatoes, well, then, of course, the price of tomatoes
will plummet. They'll all rot and fall on the ground. But the tax assessor doesn't really
care if we sell our products. He doesn't care if we're in a viable business. He just wants
to see rows of crops even if it's just a false farm and nobody...all these crops are rotting
on the ground, he doesn't care. He just wants us to grow it now so it looks like we're a
farm and I think that's silly. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chuck, and I apologize I didn't see your -MR. THORNE: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --your request here. Members, are there questions for the
testifier? Go ahead, Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I want to go too far. Okay, anyhow. Thank you very
much for your, your. . .the information. How many acres are you presently?
MR. THORNE: Three acres.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three acres, okay. And what location? What, what, what
is the area you're in?
MR. THORNE: I'm in the Hana Ag Park.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. THORNE: So, it's mostly bare rock there, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so not much topsoil?
MR. THORNE: Not much, maybe an inch or sometimes two or three in the low pockets.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and this letter you received recently basically saying
that they're going to change your tax, land tax status from agricultural to whatever it
might be?
MR. THORNE: Yeah, you have 30 days to submit a whole bunch of photos and your, and your
testimony that you have, you know, you're farming actively and how much and they want
to see rows. They want to see photographs of rows of crops and you get 30 days to get it
in and then otherwise your tax rates will increase substantially it says. Basically, I call
Wes and he says they're going to raise you to residential rates.
Now, when I bought my property 13 years ago, there was no talk of anything like this.
This was your rate, this is your tax rate, and a lot of people bought these properties, you
know, budgeting. You know, we were planning for our future. We're planning at what
we can afford and I told them some people are going to be retiring and I'd hope to retire
some day soon. Do I have to keep farming until . . .(change tape, start IB). . . I drop
dead? We would rather sell out and move away, you know. And I say, well, that doesn't
seem fair, you know, we, we want to farm for our subsistence and what we can, but we
don't want to be forced to tell us we have to farm, we have to farm how much, we have to
farm this, we have to make this much money. I mean we're being micromanaged to the
point where we have no freedom to just do what we want on our own land, you know,
that's, that's what's irritating.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you, and I appreciate that information.
MR. THORNE: Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any other questions for the testifier? Okay, seeing none, thank
you. Member. . .Mr. Thorne?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Thorne?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Would you...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Pretty confused here. So, the property that you live on,
you know, is your regular residence?
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MR. THORNE: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, you're a regular resident here in Hana?
MR. THORNE: Twenty-one years in Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And the property tax that you talk about, are you being
taxed at improved residential, residential, or Ag?
MR. THORNE: It's Ag, so far, has been for all these years.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, you're being charged with Ag rate?
MR. THORNE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And what you're looking for is homeowner's rate?
MR. THORNE: No, just the same Ag rate I've always had and the same as when I bought the
property, it was Ag. We count on that rate so it would stay the same, you know, maybe
jump up minimally but not, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, the issue then, the issue is to show that you have a
viable farm on your property, on your three acres?
MR. THORNE: Right, that's what they want to see now. Before it didn't seem to matter, you
know, when you bought it, it didn't seem to matter. You had a. . .if you farm later, if you
farm now, or if you don't farm at all, if you just. . .you, you said before just sort of
preservation is good, just mulch it in, let it preserve soil for the future, or it used to be
subsistence, you know, for your own home, your own residence. You know, knowing to
me, you can't make a lot of money farming anyway, so you grow any known fruit or
every known vegetable, or fruit tree you can think of and I've got about 30 different
varieties, which I eat fruit from, which is really fun, you know, really good, and you sell
some to the tourists. But, you know, it's a small part of the income.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, I think you answered my question. Thank you.
MR. THORNE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Members, any other questions? Okay, seeing none, the
next testifier is Dawn Lono.
MS. LONO: Good evening, thank you, Members. Just listening to the conversation, I really
need to say something in support of farming. I have a farm in Kaeleku, right across the
street from Chuck Thorne. It. . .there is a lot of rock. There's no question about that but
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when we planted our farm almost 25 years ago, we now have 2.75 acres, and we make
good money selling flowers. We do have other jobs that we work 'cause we couldn't,
you know, pay for the land and pay our living expenses on just the farm. But I can have a
feeling that if we did put full-time energy into it, we could probably make a pretty good
living.
The area is not the easiest farming land but it does grow crops and there's a lot of
evidence in the area if you drive through the Ag Park that there's a lot of agriculture
going on. There are a lot of flower farms. There's a lot of cattle grazing. There's a lot of
fruit farms, avocados, things like that.
Also--I lost my train of thought--I, I just feel like I know that back when the house was
first built on the property before we owned it, we. . .there was a lease on the property and
the people who built the house were always required every year to show that they had
agriculture, and if they weren't growing agriculture that they would be charged
residential rates. And then at some point they were required to show how much
agriculture they were doing so that they would. . .certain amount of it would be charged
the agricultural rates and certain amount would be charged at residential rates. And so,
it's kind of always been that way as far as I know. Now, I see the County is really getting
on it and they're starting to send out these letters, and I got one, and I have to prove, you
know, that I'm farming. And I think it's a good thing. I think we need to be collecting
the taxes that are due and that people need to be paying taxes according to the use of the
land. It's, it's only logical and that land out there has always been farm land.
So, I just, I really support the farming industry, especially in that area. I think it's
important for Hana and important for the County to diversify our economy and to not
have all our eggs in one basket, kind of like they are now, and to really promote farming.
Now, whether this is the way to do it or not is another thing and that's a good. . .it's a
good thing that we're looking at the Maui Island General Plan and trying to figure out
how we can we do that. But I would just like to support farming in Hana.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Dawn. Members, questions for the testifier?
Okay, just a comment, Dawn. I think you're correct in that if these are areas that Hana
has vision for, then being sure that it's included in your General Plan, your Community
Plan, and especially your, your Island Plan, this would be the process in which to ensure
that it gets included. So those areas that you seek to, to be your food producing areas
within Hana that they are given consideration in the planning processes so that we will
surely identify those kinds of activities, uses, and the areas that are associated with it, so.
MS. LONO: Yes.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, thank you for your input.
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MS. LONO: I also would like to request an updated draft of the General Plan for our office. I
have a lot of people calling and the plan that I have is probably at least six months old.
So, I don't have the update from when it got turned over to the Council. So, if I could get
a draft for our office so that people can reference kind of from where we are now and
look at the changes that have been made since it got turned over from the Planning
Commission.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I believe that as, as, this Committee has been moving
the General Plan and approving that they have been updating the, the Planning
Department has. . .David, you want to, is that correct? As we pass sections out that
they're available--no?--for review?
MR. RAATZ: It hasn't been made available. The Planning Department . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, I guess it's not available.
MS. LONO: It makes it kind of hard because as we looked at it when the Planning Commission
was here there's been a lot of changes since they've gone around to the other districts, so
we kind of don't really know where we are now so we can address that looking forward.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Why don't I just let the Planning Department clarify that.
MS. BOSCO: Yeah, thanks. Is this working? Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair. Can you
hear me? Okay, can you hear me now? Okay, all right. Just to clarify. Perhaps after the
meeting, I can contact you and provide you with the information that you need. But for
everyone's information, the, the Planning Committee has been reviewing the draft
Countywide Policy Plan and we do have. . .we have proposed amendments since the
original 2008 Plan. They have not been posted publicly at this point, but if anyone would
care to see what the changes are, I would actually direct the public to Council Services
Staff at this point. However, at some point, we will be providing a complete revision of
the Countywide Policy Plan, which the County Council will act on for approval. So,
maybe contact me after the meeting. We can help you.
MS. LONO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you. For the sake of clarification, Dawn, there's a lot
of confusion about this process. There's actually three things that we'll work on and
we're on stage one now, which is the Countywide Policy Plan and that's the very general
plan with all the motherhood and apple pie and nice things we want see. It's very
general. It's more vision statements. Next, of course, will be the Maui Island Plan,
which the Planning Commissions are working on right now.
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MS. LONO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And they're doing a lot of work on that. And, of course, the last
one will be the Community Plan where we'll be having a Hana Plan.
MS. LONO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So, the specifics will come more in the Community Plan and in
the Island Plan than in what we're working on right now. This is more broad and more
general. So, I think that, you know, when it comes to the Hana Plan, that will be really
important that you come and identify, you know, the things you want to see in Hana,
where you want to see them, the specifics. But right now this is more of a general nature.
So, I think, there's a little bit of confusion about what we're working on but tonight it's
the Countywide Policy Plan.
MS. LONO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for coming.
MS. LONO: Okay, you're welcome. And just one more thing . . .(inaudible). . . to our office. I
do post those agendas and there's a special bulletin board right next to the post office
where every single person in Hana must go at some point and that bulletin board has only
County notices on it. So, if you want to know what's going on and you're not online or
whatever, you can check that bulletin board. And if it is relative to Hana, I highlight it in
bright colors so that when you're walking by, if you don't want to look at all that stuff,
but if you see those bright colors highlighted, you know that it's something specific to
Hana. And you can check the store bulletin boards also. And get put on my e-mail list
and I have a e-mail list that I blast out to everybody when there is a meeting in Hana. So,
if you're not on the list and you want to be on it, give me a call at 7513, and I will put
you on the list. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Dawn, and the Chair just wanted to make one
correction. I was advised by Staff that this meeting was noticed for two weeks prior
. ..(inaudible). . .
MS. LONO: Yes, it was noticed for two weeks and the notice has been up for two weeks at
the County -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you.
MS. LONO: --building and on the, the door.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you for, for explaining that --
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MS. LONO: Sure.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --and for doing your work. Thank you. Mahalo.
MS. LONO: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair? Go ahead, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. You know, Mr. Chair, if we
can just get a clarification from Planning. I'm a little, I'm a little, I'm going to use the
word "disturbed" that as this process moves on this Committee has been voting up or
down on certain of the recommendations and if those recommendations at this point is
not being posted by the Planning Department for an unknown reason at this point. The
public is not being informed as to where we are at certain points. So, I'm a little, I'm a
little concerned because what will continue to happen is when we get to different
communities, they will not be on the same page as the Committee and we're going to be
the dog chasing its tail because the Department is not posting accordingly. So, it's
something that maybe the Department can get back to us, because I don't think that's a
fair process for us to go through it and not post it. Because a lot of the information is
being reviewed online and if it's not there it's just not fair to all these people to not be on
the same page as we are. So, I don't expect a response today, but perhaps Planning at a
later time can tell me how we can not post an update for the general public. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you, Chair. And we will ask the Department to,
to clarify that for us. And Dawn. . .any other questions for the testifier? Okay, hold on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Dawn, for being here. Because many of the
testifiers have, have talked about farming Kaeleku, including you, and it is a very rocky
place, you know, made up of plenty a'a lava, and as it moves down to the ocean we see
the pahoehoe, the sheet rock down there. However, that is just one of the first Sugar
Plantations in the State of Hawaii, Kaeleku Sugar Company. Those fields up there were
all sugar cane at one time and they did farming very vigorously and was successful so I
know there's not, I mean if you dig down, you're going to hit that rock in all of that area.
But farming did occur there successfully. Thank you.
MS. LONO: And I could tell you after many years of farming, I mean we had pahoehoe, and it
was difficult initially to plant. We actually did bring up our bulldozer in and a
jackhammer and we jackhammered some stuff up. But over the 25 years we've been
farming, we have created so much soil from the mulching, from all the leaves, from
everything. We now have soil because we were farming. So, you know, it works both
ways. If you don't know what you're doing and you lose all your soil, well, that's just
kind of, you know, not too smart. But if you do farm, then you are actually creating soil
and we've seen that firsthand on our farm. Thank you.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you very much, Dawn. Mike, you want to?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, that's all right. No problem. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We have no other people signed up for testimony
tonight, but, again, are there anyone here that would like to testify before the Committee?
If you would like to, please come forward. If not, then we will move on with our
business. Okay, last chance.
MS. LONO: You know what, I'd just like to thank Carl Lindquist so much because he was on
the
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The GPAC, yeah.
MS. LONO: --the GPAC Committee and that was amazing and a lot of work. He had to drive
from Hana every single week and attend all of those meetings. So I think Hana should be
very grateful to Carl for all the work that he did--the other members, too, they're not
here--but Carl, thank you so much. . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank, thank you very much, Carl.
MR. THORNE: Could I briefly ask Dawn a question? Dawn.. .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, okay. If you, excuse me, Mr. Thorne, yeah, we're going
to continue our, our business. Now, if you want to ask Dawn a question, personally, you,
you can do that.
MR. THORNE: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, the Chair allowed you to testify and, and give your
input, but I'm not going to allow you to try and question others who have participated.
MR. THORNE: Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And if there are no more people that would like to
testify, then the Chair is going to move to close the public testimony and then we're
going to continue doing our Council business on the item that's before us. Okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: No objections, okay. So public testimony is, is now officially
closed. Okay.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, at this time what we would like to do is we're going
to call on the Planning Department and ask the Planning Department to do a brief
summary on where we are tonight and what is the task before the Committee. And then
for, for those of you present, we are looking at the General Policy Plan for Maui County,
and the Committee has been working on our previous meetings, and we're just going to
continue and review the, the information before us. And the Committee will be making
motions to accept or amend or change or delete any of the, the statements that is before us
in the Planning document. So, at this time we'll call on Ms. Bosco.
MS. BOSCO: Okay, thank you, Mr. Chairperson. I just wanted to briefly summarize the
process that we're going through. The process began over four years ago to develop the
update of the General Plan 2030. The General Plan itself is comprised of 11 separate
documents. The Planning Committee at this point is reviewing the very first of those
documents, which is the Countywide Plan, and that plan addresses all of the islands, and
is intended to be a very broad, very visionary document with vision statements of what
the community desires for its future. The timeframe is 20 years for the entire General
Plan and the Countywide basically sets up the framework for the Island Plans that are
coming after the Countywide and also the Community Plans. So, at this point, what
we're doing is we're going through each of the sections of the Countywide Plan and with
the following version of the Countywide Plan, the Planning Committee will take up the
Island Plan. . .the Maui Island Plan, okay, which is currently under review by the Maui
Planning Commission.
We have gone through five different sections of the Countywide Plan out of 11 and
currently we are starting our review of the Economy Section. So, tonight's work before
us with the Planning Committee is on the Economy Section, which is the sixth section,
and I believe there's copies over here for the public. And so, without further ado, if you
would like me to begin the review with the Planning Committee again.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Would you continue, please.
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. Okay, how we're going to work through this is, and what seems to
have worked in the past, is to...for me to read the goal statements and the first objective
and then allow the Members to review the underlying policies under each objective. And
I will not read those policies, but I will...if you'd like me to I can, but I will allow the
Members to discuss each policy as they'd like and propose amendments to each, each
statement.
So, I will start with the goal statement for the Economy, Section F, Maui County's
economy will be diverse, sustainable, and support community values. And underneath
that the first objective is promote an economic climate that will encourage diversification
of the County's economic base and a sustainable rate of economic growth. And
underneath this objective we have policy Fla through F11, and then we have two
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underlying actions statements, and I will allow the Members to review those and make,
make recommendations. Thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you, Ms. Bosco. Members, what the Chair
is. . .would like to recommend is that we make a motion to accept the goal, the objective,
and all of the policy statements under the objective as a motion. And once that motion is
on the floor and passed, then we will take amendments to the motion by going through
the policy items one at a time if, if need be, and if you see no more, then the motion
exists before us, then we'll continue to advance that, so. So, the recommendation is to
accept the goal, the objectives, and the policies here from Fla to Policy F11.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's been moved by Member Victorino and seconded by
Member Baisa to accept the goals and the objectives and policies in the Local Economy
Section. Any discussion on the motion? Okay. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, Members, now before us is the goal and the
objectives from Fla to F11. Are there any sections or policies that the Members would
like to consider? Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I...maybe I got to look ahead but, in fact, never mind
`cause I was going bring up about agriculture and I looking at the next section, it covers
that. So, never mind. I, I'm okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, we're under discussion of the main motion. So, I'll
open the floor to any one of these items that you'd like to discuss. Okay, Member Baisa,
did you have any?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I was just...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We're going to go to Member Baisa first, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. I was just doing a brief overview of what is in
this particular section. And it appears that it's very general and, of course, tries to honor
the idea of traditional host culture businesses and indigenous agricultural practices,
sustainability, providing, you know, growth in jobs and education, and home-based
businesses, and actually trying to diversify our economy. And I don't have any
comments. I don't see anything that's detrimental. Thank you.

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 14, 2009
Helene Hall, Hana

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. You know, in reading, reading
through the section that we're discussing right now, there's a lot to do with agriculture
and, you know, we want to support agriculture, but I don't see anything within this
section if it can be or shouldn't be having to do with water in order to support agriculture.
So, I, I'm just bringing up that question.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Member Medeiros. Actually, if we go to
the second objective you will see that it's going to talk about agriculture in that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're not there yet.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, yeah, yeah. At this time, the Chair would like to
acknowledge Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. This is for Planning Department regarding
Fl g, support home business. . .businesses that are appropriate for and in character with
the community. My, my, my question is as we move forward, you know, I look at this as
existing communities, as we move forward to new communities, I'm of the understanding
that this will carry on to those new communities.
MS. BOSCO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And if a condition is placed on those new communities,
how this will affect...this statement here affect those new communities with conditions?
MS. BOSCO: Thank, thank you. May I, may I?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Planning Department.
MS. BOSCO: Okay, thank you, Member. This will affect new communities. However, how
this will be implemented would most likely be through the establishment of home-based,
a home-based occupation ordinance and in, in new regulations that may be developed in
the future to address home-based businesses. So, there will be standards and
requirements that will need to be met, and we would need to take a look at each
community as well to see how that would play out. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. The other question is how will CC&Rs affect
this?
MS. BOSCO: The County typically does not administer CC&R. We don't get, we. . .the
CC&Rs are a different level of, I should say, private regulation by homeowners
associations and so forth. Typically, that's, that's a different. . .we don't typically control
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CC&Rs and their implementation. However, it would, it would just depend. I, I. . .what
I can say is we do not administer an association's CC&Rs. So, that's up to the private
community to address, so.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thanks.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. Members, any other items? Okay, I know that this
is a, a long section with a lot of policies from "a" to "1", so I just want to give you one
more opportunity to look once more from Fla to F11 and if you see any part of it you'd
like discussion on. Okay, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Now that I've had a chance to take a closer look, can we look at
F11?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: F11.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm sorry, F11. Sorry looks like 11.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: ...(Inaudible). . . Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's late. Provide financial and programmatic assistance and
support to public and private entities that assist entrepreneurs in establishing locally
operated businesses. I think this is kind of a scary thing to say we're going to provide
financial and programmatic assistance. I'd like a better word than provide.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, say it again, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: My concern is with the word "provide".
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: You know, if we say we're going to provide anything, we better provide it. If
we say we're going to support it, we're going to encourage it, we're going to try to help
these people financially or programmatically, but when we say provide that's a mandate.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would like to change it to support like the other ones,
yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, the Chair is open to any amendments to the sections and
policies, so.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It just doesn't read well. Maybe, Simone, can help us
wordsmith, but I'd like to support it rather than actually, you know, be mandated to
provide it.
MS. BOSCO: How about, you know, I...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Simone.
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. How about the word "facilitate"? Is that, facilitate, it's not making
us responsible for providing but facilitating through other entities.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, the suggestion is to look at facilitate. Comments?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: In some cases, we may want to provide support, maybe through
an economic development program or something. But and that's beyond. . .I don't know,
would that be considered facilitation? I'm just trying to think about, you know, it's tough
to come up with these words and the nuances of words.
MS. BOSCO: What, what, what another recommendation could be to drop the very first phrase
and start with support public and private entities that assist entrepreneurs in establishing
local . . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sounds good. Sounds better to me. So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, I'm sorry, I didn't hear your.. .
MS. BOSCO: To drop, drop the first phrase "provide financial and programmatic assistance"
and begin the sentence with "support public and private entities that assist entrepreneurs
in establishing locally operated businesses."
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: See, I like that because that might be something like the MEO
BDC Program where we, you know, we support and we would have the decision as a
Council how to do, well, we could be giving them money, we could be programmatic, but
there is no mandate.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, so is that your amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, please.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, a second.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We have an amendment proposed by Member Baisa to
Policy Flt and it should be changed to read, "support public and private entities that
assist entrepreneurs in establishing locally operated businesses." Seconded by Member
Victorino. Members, discussion on this amendment? Seeing none, then all those in favor
of the amendment signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no? Okay. Motion is carried on the amendment.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, and Victorino, and Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki and Vice-Chair Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment to Policy F11.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Members, any other sections in here which you would
like? Member Medeiros, you okay?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, you know, looking at the amendment that we just
passed, would that also apply to F11(a) because we're saying we're providing
opportunities in that section. So, should we be saying develop regulations and programs
that support opportunities? I'm not sure.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, we're dealing right now with all of the, the policy
statements and then we're going to take the next section of the action following this. So,
at this point, if there's no other discussion on the motion before us on the policies from
Ha to F11, as amended, then all those in favor of this signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no? Okay. Motion is carried, as amended.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, and Victorino, and Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki and Vice-Chair Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Now, we will be moving down to the Action Section, which
includes two items and the Chair's recommendation is that a motion be made to accept
these two items . . .(change tape, start 2A). . . A and B under this section.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Discussion, Members? Okay, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I, I think yeah, in Action A for
consistency then we should also change the "provide" in that section and utilize
"support", I guess, which was used in the amendment prior, because I agree with Member
Baisa that when you say provide it kind of, kind of...it's almost mandated that you're
going to do that. But I think when you say support it, it gives the meaning that however
you can support it, you will try. So, I, I would make a motion to amend Action A to
change the word "provide" to "support" to read "develop regulations and programs that
support opportunities for local merchants, farmers, and small businesses to sell their
goods and services directly to the public."
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. It's been moved by Member Medeiros to amend
Action Item A, removing the word "provide" and inserting the word "support", and
seconded by Member Victorino. Discussion on the amendment?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yeah. I think my discussion
which I just gave previously is just for consistency with the previous amended...
amendment that we voted on. Mahalo.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, any other discussion? Okay, seeing none, then the Chair
will call for...okay, Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. When, when they say develop
regulations and programs that provide, that support opportunities for local merchants,
farmers, and small businesses to sell their goods and services directly to the public. So,
the development of the regulations as well as the programs would be a County
responsibility? And do we have like a department that will, will, will do this?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Planning Department, would you like to comment on
that?
MS. BOSCO: Yes, thank you. Yes, this would be a County responsibility and there are a
number of agencies that do develop programs to help local businesses, as an example
even the Parks Department has regulations to help the festivals, and the Planning
Department has programs to help local farmers, and there's just a number of
opportunities there that agencies can be involved with to help local people, so.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Members, any other discussion on the amendment
before us then? Okay. If not, then all those in favor of the amendment to Action Item A
signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no? Okay. Amendment carries.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, and Victorino, and Chair
Kahosohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki and Vice-Chair Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment to Action A.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Members, any other discussion on the second Action Item?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. This is a, a major thing although it looks like
a tiny thing but "monitor the County's carrying capacity of the islands social, ecological,
and infrastructure systems with respect to the economy." You know, last year when I
was in the Planning Committee I know Member Johnson had a real concern about this
issue of carrying capacity and it seems like a major effort to determine what that is and
even if we determine it, how do we limit things to our carrying capacity? I mean there's
all kinds of wrinkles involved with this so I was real interested. And Simone, any
comments?
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. Yes, you are absolutely right. It's a very difficult thing to try to
establish the carrying capacity and I think the word here that we used in this action
statement "monitor", I think, we, we can try. That's the best answer I can give you and
the tearing of this action statement with respect to the economy really garners it to
looking at, well, where in our systems are we, are we going beyond our limits and how is
that beginning to affect our economic, our economic conditions here? So, I'm going to
leave it at that right now.
COUNCIL BAISA: Chair, is this done on a regular basis now? And if so, who's doing it
because I know that this is a real issue?
MS. BOSCO: It's...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Planning Department.
MS. BOSCO: It's done in certain respects when we try and establish levels of service for certain
systems. For example, road systems, certain infrastructure standards are set, so that we
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don't exceed our carrying capacities. For example, with water and water source and how
much water we're drawing from the aquifers. But it's constantly changing all the time.
So, the most we can do is try to monitor and try and set limits so that we don't exceed our
resource use and so forth and our use of our infrastructure. But, yes, in certain, in certain
areas we are doing it but I think we could do a better job.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. I, I just want us to understand that this is a very
serious little, little few words on this paper, because it would then lead to part of the
decision-making as to approving development or approving all kinds of things. Because
what happens if we have carrying capacity issues that are affecting our economy? And,
you know, then it becomes a whole other discussion. But, I think, it's a very valuable
piece of information and a valuable tool. It would be nice if we could somehow
incorporate it into each department's objective to kind of keep a little more attention to
this. But, thank you.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you, Chair. And, you know, to tack on to
what Member Baisa is saying. Simone, right now this would fall, and I'm getting, you
know, nitpicky but right now this is what Planning would. . .should be doing, right? And
do you guys do it on a regular basis? And do you incorporate other departments 'cause, I
think, like you mentioned water. I mean, I think, and we all know water is what's going
to make this island move in whatever direction wherever it wants to go, both agriculture
and as well as everything else. So, is that being incorporated?
MS. BOSCO: May I?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead.
MS. BOSCO: It is something that bridges a lot of different departments and agencies. And so,
Planning's role would be to coordinate. There's a lot of coordination that's required to
gather all that information and then make it make sense for the development community
or whatever other efforts are happening on the island. But it's not just the Planning
Department that establishes carrying capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. So, but the other departments would feed to you
folks?
MS. BOSCO: Exactly, that's right.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I, I think that was more my question and, and, and at
this time, is that happening? Or is it's, or it's...
MS. BOSCO: It's happening in certain respects.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. BOSCO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, we need to make a focal on this, this whole issue?
MS. BOSCO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you, and this is to the Planning Department
following up with Ms. Baisa's question. This, this Section B is definitely a real important
component and I honestly have never heard of the County having a carrying capacity
because the County does not have one. We've asked for it many times and it's, it's
interesting how we can put a component like this in and yet we give no date as to the
report or information they're using that it's based off of their report. We could be
looking at their carrying capacity for the last ten years and a carrying capacity of five
years old is of very little relevance to us in planning for the future. So, you know, unless
their, unless their studies are accurate and current, this is a real difficult item to monitor,
and I don't know how to, how to state it more intently that in order for us to monitor the
County's carrying capacity we had better be sure that the County has the palapala to
show us that they in fact do have a carrying capacity because I seriously doubt it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department, you have any comments?
MS. BOSCO: My one comment is I think this action statement could be improved, and I think
you're, you're very, you're dead on about that. I think we need to. . .we could improve
this statement so that we tie it to the. . .maybe we, we say the existing carrying capacity
or we modify this. . .the stem sentence just slightly so that it's, it's more measurable.
So -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
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MS. BOSCO: --that's all, that's my one comment.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think what's missing from the action step is a who and when,
because when nobody knows who and nobody knows when it never gets done. It's
everybody, somebody, and nobody.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Well, the Chair's comments is that one in a very, very
broad stroke of which, I think, this document is intended it's at least calling to our
attention that some manner of monitoring for current carrying capacities should be at
some point in time engaged and it should include these areas so that we have a better
gauge in terms of planning. But I don't see it as the one that's going to specifically
resolve the, the, the question of carrying capacity, but I think the intent is to allow us an
opportunity to begin looking at carrying capacity. So, so, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Could that be cited someplace else? I mean anyplace like in the
Island Plan or how could we incorporate something somewhere with teeth?
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. This concept...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Maybe it doesn't belong here.
MS. BOSCO: Well, that's a very good point. This concept comes up later in Land Use.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Great.
MS. BOSCO: And we can actually leave it to Land Use if the Members feel it's more
appropriate there or in another section. Or we can we revisit it or we can leave it here but
it does come up later, so.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. For the Planning Department, so
under Planning procedures and standards, do you have an equation or formula to figure
carrying capacity? Because carrying capacity seems to be dynamic, it's not something
that's static. So, what is the formula or the equation that gets you to the results of what
carrying capacity is?
MS. BOSCO: That's...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Go ahead, Department.
MS. BOSCO: Oh, I'm. . .there is no one formula, I'd, I'd have to say. And it, it depends upon...

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 14, 2009
Helene Hall, Hana

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Could you speak up? Can you speak, speak into the
microphone.
MS. BOSCO: Sure. I. . .there is no one formula for determining carrying capacity. It would
depend upon what you're studying and there is, there's ecological limits. There's
resource limits. There's infrastructure limits. There's. . .so there's not just one formula
but you're looking at trying to determine at what limit are you going too far. And at what
limit are you burdening the system so that it's actually beginning to work against you,
work against the system in itself actually or the...or the community.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: All places, yeah. Okay.
MS. BOSCO: So, I. . .it depends on what you're looking at really.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, again, just, just overarching, I would like you to, you
know, reflect that action item over the objective and the objective is to promote an
economic climate that will encourage diversification of the County's economic base and
a sustainable rate of economic growth. So, if that's the objective, then the question is, is
this an action item that would serve or help that objective? You know, so I think there's
pertinence here because we would like to understand it in the idea of economic growth
that we would be going in a direction that would be in part steered through monitoring of
carrying capacity for any one area and in this case for economic development. So, if,
Members, if. . .and that's the Chair's comments about that specific action item and its
pertinence in this. So, okay. Go ahead, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I think, it's relevant but maybe when we get to Land Use
we can consider putting something there that's more specific. Okay.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then are there any other discussion on this Action
Item B? Okay. Then, if none, then all those in favor of action items or the adoption as
amended signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no? Okay, Action Items A and B are adopted as
amended. Okay.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, and Victorino, and Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki and Vice-Chair Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of Action Items A and B, as
amended.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: The Chair would now like to recommend that we adopt the
second objective in F2 and the policies that are attached to it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, second by Member
Medeiros to adopt objective F2 and the policies listed below. Members, we're in
discussion now on this. So, please take a look at these items. And then, Department, do
you have any comments on this objective, add to? Okay.
MS. BOSCO: Yes, thank you, Chair. I only have one comment and that would be pertaining to
F2e. The Department would like to recommend that we insert after the word "land",
"and water" and that comes up later on in the plan as well. However, it would read
"support ordinances, programs, and policies that keep agricultural land and water
available and affordable to farmers."
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you. Members, any discussion then?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, moved by Member Victorino. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Second by Member Baisa that we amend Policy F2e as
presented by the Department. So, discussion on the amendment? Seeing none, then all
those in favor of the amendment signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no? Okay, amendment to F2e is adopted.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, and Victorino, and Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.:

Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki and Vice-Chair Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment to Policy F2e.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, the floor is open for further discussion on this objective
and the policies?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, I. . .in looking at this, most of the stuff in here,
I, I concur with but what I wanted to see and I only see in that Section F, I guess, that
would be F211...F21.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: F21?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that controlling genetic modified crops to prevent
adverse effects. I have no problem with that but what I wanted or what I was looking for
is something that specifically would speak to organic farming. And, yes, we have healthy
farming practices, I mean, but nothing and, and if I'm missing something, please,
someone show me, but I couldn't find anything that addresses, addresses organic
farming, which, I think, it's an important component. I think you and I share this same
sentiment that it's something that should be promoted but where unless you put it in
another area like encouraging organic and healthy farming practices. I don't know,
Mr. Chair, but I open that, the idea up that we should have something specific.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department, any, any comments on the, the term "organic
farming" --
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MS. BOSCO: I know...
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --that was discussed, yeah.
MS. BOSCO: Thank you. This did come up as a recommendation from one of the GPAC
members and it did not...it received support. I think we, we felt it was part of a broader
effort to support agricultural, agriculture in general. A very closely related policy is F2k;
however, it doesn't specifically speak to organic farming. So, if the Members would like
to add something they could now. However, yeah, I, I just wanted to say it did come up
and it was...there was support for it.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and I, I think that aside from F2k, F2j also has some
inference on healthy farm practices, which might be...okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What if, what if we added under F2j, encourage organic
healthy farm practices for which contribute to land health and regeneration.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, maybe encourage healthy organic farm practices.
Healthy organic?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Healthy organic? Okay, all right, okay, that's fine. I have
no problem with that, Chair.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Try, try that. Yeah, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, in other words, the motion would be "encourage
healthy organic farm practices which contribute to land health and regeneration."
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Chair, I second the motion.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. We have an amendment to F2j to read, "encourage
healthy organic farm practices which contribute to land health and regeneration."
Seconded by Member Baisa. Members, discussion on the amendment?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I just want to ask on, on that amendment because
we're saying encourage healthy organic, right, farm practices. I'm thinking organic is
separate from. . .because somebody can be farming regular kind of farm, not organic, and
still have healthy farm practices. So, I think, when we combine it we're, we're just
saying, okay, if you organic farming then make it healthy farm practices. I, I think we
should keep it separate that maybe, you know, something like encourage organic and
healthy farm practices because not everybody farms organic. And that's just, you know,
you know.. .
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Amend the amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, okay, Mr. Chairman, then I, I move.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, before he does that. Okay, I just retract my,
my -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --my motion. That will make it easier to make the change,
and just make it and that's what I originally suggested and you, you changed it. Yeah, so,
if we could go back to my original encourage healthy and organic farm practices.
Remember, I made, I said that first and that's okay. Yeah, okay, I apologize. So,
Mr. Medeiros, that was my original.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, if you're going to retract, then you can retract your
second. Member Victorino, you can go ahead and make that amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So the amendment I would like to make,
"encourage healthy and organic farm practices which contribute to land health and
regeneration."
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And I second that.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa, second. Okay, Members, we have an
amendment to F2j to "encourage healthy and organic farm practices which contribute to
land health and regeneration." Discussion on the amendment? Okay, seeing none, then
all those in favor of the amendment signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no? Okay. That amendment F2j is adopted.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Balsa, Medeiros, and Victorino, and Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki and Vice-Chair Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment to Policy F2j.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, discussion, further discussion on any of the other policy
items? You want that turned down?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Could you, please?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Can somebody, Staff, turn...yeah, the wind.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The fan.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, turn 'em down. Yeah. 'Cause it's fast, yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, okay. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, on Item F21, can the Planning Department explain
the rationale for that particular section and the wording that was used by the Planning
Department to word this particular F21. Planning?
MS. BOSCO: Yes, thank you. I'm going to read the policy for the public's benefit. F21 is
"encourage methods of monitoring and controlling genetically modified crops to prevent
adverse effects." This became a, a pretty heated discussion actually at GPAC level. The
GPAC had to take many votes on this particular policy, and also there's later on down the
line when we get to it there's an action. But for the purpose of, of your question, the, the
policy is intended to safeguard our, our non-genetically modified crops from
contamination or from, you know, any unintended consequences. And I think it's wise
and prudent for, for us to try and do that. But that's, that's the intent of it is to safeguard
the, the other crops and also just try and put up some other means of protecting just your
citizens from going into a crop and thinking it's okay. I mean, there's...who knows
what's really going on in...on, on those lands, really.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Planning, thank, thank you for that explanation. I wasn't
sure about, you know, what they meant with the wording but now you've explained the
rationale behind it. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Members, any other discussion on this objective and
these policies? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. In F2b, Planning Department, was
there any consideration when this was developed about discussions about important
agricultural lands that it be incorporated in this? Because, I don't know, did that come
up?
MS. BOSCO: It has come up. It's come up again and again. Yes, the answer is yes. And I
think the idea is, the inherent idea is right now we, we have monocrops and this is a
20-year plan and we don't know what the future is right now for the monocrops. So,
eventually, perhaps we will just diversify into other kinds of crops so this is where this
policy is intended to really work...do its work to try and promote different kinds of food
crops that could support the local population.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, when, when I, I speak about important agricultural
lands -MS. BOSCO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --that's something the State was going to come up with a, a
list of important agriculture lands. Was that brought up as far as the State coming up
with that?
MS. BOSCO: As far as the State developing which lands are important?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Agricultural lands, AILs [sic]?
MS. BOSCO: I. . .it, it did come up. It's, it's something that's not within our jurisdiction. We
can recommend but we don't control what the State. . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you, Planning Department. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And Department, do you want to just talk to us about
the item that's listed there that's, that's new?
MS. BOSCO: Yes, please.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Oh, I'm sorry. A brief recess, okay. A three-minute recess.

. ..(gavel). . .

RECESS:

7:29 p.m.

RECONVENE: 7:32 p.m.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . .(gavel). . . The Planning Committee is now reconvened.
Members, we are on Objective 2 and we're looking at Policies Fa through F...no, I'm
sorry, -MS. BOSCO: L.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --F2a to F2m. If. . .are there any other items in this to, for any
discussion? Okay, then seeing none, then the Chair would call for the question. All
those in favor of approving the Objective No. 2 and the policy items listed below, F2a to
F2m, as amended, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: All those opposed? Okay. That section is carried.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, and Victorino, and Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki and Vice-Chair Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: It is now 7:32 according to my clock. The Chair is just
wondering if we might just take the action items for this section and complete this section
if the Members. . .okay. So, I would like a motion then, recommend a motion to accept
Actions Items A through C.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino and seconded by Member
Medeiros to accept Action Items A to C. So, Members, discussion on the action items?
Okay, seeing none, then all those in favor?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wait, wait, wait.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, hold on. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, this is a very serious thing we're doing here. We're
going to increase the staffing in OED to further facilitate the development of Ag sector
and monitor Ag issues. That's a financial commitment. I'm concerned about that. We
have the Budget Chair with us tonight.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Department, this is a section...an action item that has
asterisks so do you want to clarify this?
MS. BOSCO: Yes, let me explain. This action is derived from the Policy F2g, which states
"enhance County efforts to monitor and regulate important agricultural issues." We did
have another action item actually in a different section that recommended creating an
advisory body, and the Department backed off from that position thinking that it would
be difficult, first of all. And secondly, it would be easier to increase staffing in OED
where there is already an Agricultural Division that, that whose purpose it is to monitor
Ag issues. So, the thought behind it is because we're dealing with an...and, and really, I
think, an economic sector that's a primary sector here, it would be, it would be important
to try to, to create more staffing to work with the State and also just to follow agricultural
legislation and so forth to help support that sector, the growth of that sector here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. I'm okay with it except that I'd like to see some
accommodation for feasibility.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Presently, we do have a person that supports
the Administration in the State in regards to not legislating but to --
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Liaison.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --liaison, lobbyist for the County of Maui. And how
does that person, can that person work with OED in regards to agricultural legislations
and issues -CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --rather than OED.
MS. BOSCO: Okay, I didn't quite catch the very first part of what you said. . .were you saying
there is a liaison now?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. The Administration does have one, not a liaison
but a lobbyist.
MS. BOSCO: I'm not sure how. . .1 honestly...I do not know. I'm, I'm not sure how the liaison
works. I know that there, I know that there seems to be a lot of issues that I know
Planning would, would like to be more apprised of. I, I'm not, I'm not sure how I can
answer that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Maybe you guys can go check because the
Administration does have a lobbyist that tracks all of the bills that affect Maui County
along with the, the Council. We, we do track some bills. And part of the, you know, part
of it is agricultural legislation. But I do have a question. How do we protect the, the big
companies, like HC&S, Maui Land and Pine, in their agriculture business here in Maui
County or on Maui?
MS. BOSCO: How do we protect them? That's a good question.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Because they are a big part of our economy right now.
.(change tape, start 2B). . They employ, I think both companies employ over a
thousand people and it seems like when I read through some of, you know, some of the
things that we've gone through. It's more targeted to small farmers rather than the big
farmers who provide for this County.
MS. BOSCO: I think as it pertains to this section what we can hope to do is try and create
different kinds of mechanisms whereby large landowners can, can receive certain
incentives or benefits whether it's through taxation or preserving the, the land itself. I
mean, I think, essentially when you're looking at the enormous amount of land that it
requires to have a monocrop you need to make sure it's preserved and that's primary.
But I'm not sure, that question how do we protect?
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CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: You know, I'm, I'm looking in the section itself under the
policies and I'm trying to look at where, we're identifying or not, the current large
farmers. But I'm looking at the statements like support programs that position Maui
County agricultural products as premium export products. So, are you interpreting that to
mean a small sector or all because this would be a general statement across, you know.. .
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, since you're explaining if it's a general statement
that, that would cover the big and small, yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then there's other sections in here as well looking at this
prioritizing so that agricultural land to feed the local population and promote the use of
agricultural lands for sustainable and diversified Ag activities. So, do you see that as, as
overarching current steps, you know?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I don't know. I don't know.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: 'Cause then it does move to the diversification by adding
aquaculture as industries. It's looking now at, keep agriculture available and affordable,
support a tax structure that is conducive to the growth of the agricultural economy. I
would think that would be supportive.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, that, that would support, you know, even the big
business, yeah.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Enhance County efforts to monitor and regulate important
agricultural issues. So, what I hope you will be doing is looking at this not for the, the
specific details but is there general policies that will include . . .(inaudible).
. .

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Well, my, my concern was just, you know, just reading
this thing here. It seems like it's covering...but when, when you say the general
population as far as farming, that first statement that you made, made it does cover it.
But as you go down through the various policies that's where I have my concerns.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Baisa, -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.

CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: --then Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand where Member, Member Pontanilla is coming from.
It appears that most of this is an attempt to try to diversify our economic base and, of
course, to have more industries involved in farming and sustainability and whatever. But
moreover there's nothing specific in here that refers to the existing long-time businesses
that are the lynchpins of Hawaii and will continue to be, I think, for a while. Maybe
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sugar more than pineapple, but, you know, they're going to be here and they are major
employers. And yet there really is very, very vague references to supporting those
industries and yet they are very important as well as the diversification. So, I've been
trying to look in here for some part of this and it appears more under, I think, the first
goal. We need to put something in there that talks about not only, you know, looking for
new things but also supporting the things that have been part of our history and part of
our community. So, we need to stick that in someplace. I think it's appropriate.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Planning, the double asterisk, if we
look at the legend on Page 5, it says "NEW = Director promulgated". So, can you
explain what that legend means?
MS. BOSCO: Yes, thank you, I can. The. . .at the very bottom of the table on Page 5, the first
asterisk's divergent position.. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just the double asterisk.
MS. BOSCO: The double really is basically a policy that came after the entire GPAC and
Planning Commission process and it was proposed by the Director. In, in this case, if
we're looking specifically at the news, they came actually from the, the draft Maui Island
Plan and in, in this case...and it is basically a, a new policy from the Director, not from
the GPAC, or from the Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and tell me if I'm understanding this correctly. And,
Mr. Chairman, we, we are discussing the actions too, right? Oh, we're not there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, we're not there.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: We're actually on the action items.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Actions, right? Okay, so, on Action A, yeah, when I read
that my interpretation of that is two things are happening in this paragraph. One is to
develop an agricultural sector or arm, and the second is to monitor agricultural legislation
and issues. So, as, as described by our Budget Chair Pontanilla, the Administration does
have a legislative liaison or lobbyist, whichever you want to call it, and, and in, in this
past session, for us it...for representing the Council has been Council Chair and Council
Vice-Chair. But I think this part describes developing a new agricultural sector and that
this new staffing position would only monitor agricultural legislation and issues and not
others. Is, is that a correct understanding?
MS. BOSCO: That, that is.

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 14, 2009
Helene Hall, Hana

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, yeah, I just wanted to be sure I understood that
correctly. Thank you. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, Members, we are on discussion for the Action
Items A, B, and C. So, any further discussions on these? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. Can we put some wording in there that
increased staffing in OED to further facilitate the development of the Ag...Ag sector and
to monitor agricultural legislation and issues as feasible or something. I...we need an
escape unless we're definitely going to commit to giving them more staff.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, suggested?
MS. BOSCO: Yes, I would suggest.. .
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.
MS. BOSCO: Thank you, Chair. I would perhaps recommend something along the lines of
according to community desires or according to community need. I, I...at the tailend I, I,
that's one way of saying it. According to budgetary means...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Budgetary resources.
MS. BOSCO: According to budgetary resources?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's financially feasible.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chair, in regards to that same item both already exist.
OED already has an agricultural specialist and the, the Administration already has a paid
lobbyist. So, both already exist so we don't need to recreate the wheel. We just need to
redirect their efforts. So, perhaps by, by word, wordsmithing, we can redirect this
objective because both already exist.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Chair, if, if I hear correctly instead of increasing
staff in OID [sic] 0, OED, I should say, OED, OID, excuse me, I'm in the wrong
department. Why don't we say, just like it was suggested, redirect, redirect efforts on
OED to further facilitate and...what do you think of that, Simone?
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Department.
MS. BOSCO: I think that's good.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, the Chair will entertain an amendment.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I move that we redirect the, the...that...let me get
the right one so that we not make mistake. On Action Item A under F2 that it read,
"redirect efforts in the Office of, Office of Economic Development to further facilitate
the development of Agricultural sector and monitor agricultural liaison. . .legislation and
issues".
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, moved by Member Victorino to amend Action Item A,
as he has stated and seconded by Member Medeiros. Discussion, Members? Any
discussion? Okay, seeing none, then all those in favor of the amendment to Action Item
A signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no? Okay. Amendment is adopted as...is adopted.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, and Victorino, and Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.:

Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki and Vice-Chair Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of amendment to Action Item A.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Further discussion on the remaining amendments to this action
item, I'm sorry, remaining items in this action item section? Okay, seeing none, then all
those in favor of Action Items A through C, as amended, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Opposed, no? Okay. The Action Items A through C are
adopted, as amended.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Medeiros, and Victorino, and Chair
Kaho'ohalahala.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Molina and Nishiki and Vice-Chair Johnson.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of motion, as amended.
CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, at this time, then the Chair is going to conclude our
meeting for tonight in consideration of the fact that we have several Members that are
driving back along with our Staff to Kahului. And so I want to...before I adjourn
tonight's meeting I want to thank the Hana community for participating with us and, Bob
Carroll and your wife, thank you for enduring our process. I know you miss this so
much, yeah? . .(laughter). . . But thank you for being with us and enjoying our
processes to advance our Planning agenda, and at this point then the Chair will adjourn
tonight's meeting. Thank you. . . .(gavel). . .

ADJOURN: 7:50 p.m.
APPROVED:

SOL P. KAHO'OHALAHALA, Chair
Planning Committee
pc:min:0909 14 - I-lana
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